CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - NOVEMBER 18, 2014

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on November 18, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman
Gerald Bright, Vice Chair
Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Eron Linn, Commissioner
Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner
Randy Roland, Commissioner
Stephen Springs, Alternate
Bill Ferrell, Alternate

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Michael Spicer, Director — Development Services
Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs — Planning
Israel Roberts, Development Review Manager
Chris Shacklett, Sr. Planner
Mohamed Bireima, Planning Technician
Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding
staff reports, agenda items and a work session. No action was taken.

MINUTES
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of November 4 2014.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by
Commissioner Frederick. Motion passed 7-0.

CONSENT ITEMS

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission and will be
enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless
desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate consideration.

2. Site, Landscape and Elevation Plans - West Campbell Office Park: A request for approval of
site, landscape and elevations plans for two (2) one-story office buildings totaling 13,684 square
feet. The 3.18-acre site is located at 1050-1090 W. Campbell Road; on the north side of Campbell
Road, west of Waterview Parkway and is zoned O-M Office.

3. Site and Landscape — Custer Court (companion to Item 6): A request for approval of site and
landscape plans for combining two (2) lots and adding 129 parking spaces to an existing 125,190
square foot office building. The 7.57-acre site is located at 501 W. President George Bush
Highway, on the south side of President George Bush Highway, east of Custer Parkway.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Preliminary Plat — Palisades: A request for approval of a preliminary plat for 102 single family
lots and sixteen (16) common area lots with private streets. The 21.59-acre site is located at the
northeast corner of Palisades Boulevard and Collins Boulevard.

Final Plat — Bush Central Station, Lot 2, Block H; Lots 1 and 2, Block I; and Lots 2, 3, 4 and
5, Block X: A request for approval of a final plat for seven lots totaling 17.96 acres, located at
1109 — 1230 State Street and 3661 Plano Road; the southwest corner of President George Bush
Highway and Plano Road.

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; second by
Commissioner Maxwell. Motion approved 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

6. Replat — Custer Court Addition, Lot 1B, Block B (companion to Item 3): Consider and take

necessary action on a request for approval of a replat of Lots 1A and 2B, Block B of the Custer
Court Addition in to one (1) lot. The 7.57-acre site is located at 501 W. President George Bush
Highway, on the south side of President George Bush Highway, east of Custer Parkway.

Mr. Roberts stated the requested replat would combine two (2) lots into one (1) to accommodate
the previously approved parking lot (Item 3). He added that the replat complied with the City’s
design standards.

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.
No comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing.

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve Item 6 as presented; second by
Commissioner Linn. Motion approved 7-0.

Replat — Central Park Addition, Lots 6A, 9 and 10, Block B: Consider and take necessary
action on a request for approval of a replat of Lot 6, Block B of the Central Park Addition to create
three (3) lots. The 6.32-acre site is located at 1710-1840 N. Greenville Avenue and 1819 Jay Ell
Drive, east side of Greenville Avenue, south of Campbell Road.

Mr. Roberts said the purpose of the replat was to divide the property into three (3) lots to create
two out parcels for a proposed sale and the replat complied with the City’s design standards.

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.
No comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve Item 7 as presented; second by
Commissioner Roland. Motion approved 7-0.

Note: The Commission changed the order of the agenda with Item 10 heard prior to Items 8 and 9.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

8. Zoning File 14-32 — Turkish Community Center (continued from October 21, 2014 and
November 4, 2014): Consider and take necessary action on a request to revoke Ordinance 2390-
A, a Special Permit for the Young Women’s Christian Association (YWCA), and approval of a
request for a Special Permit for a community center to include a proposed two-story building for
office, assembly and tutoring rooms. The property is currently zoned O-M Office and is located at
1416 E. Collins Boulevard, the south side of Collins Boulevard, east of Plano Road.

Mr. Bireima stated the previous requests for continuations were based on the applicant’s desire to
address neighborhood concerns and to modify plans in response to those concerns. As a result of
numerous pieces of correspondence and comments in opposition, the applicant has decided to
withdraw his request to expand the building and was only asking for the revocation of the Special
Permit issued to the Young Women’s Christian Association (YWCA) and the issuance of a Special
Permit to allow the operation of a community center (Center) for the Turkish community.

Mr. Bireima noted that the Center would have weekly cultural, educational and recreational
activities as well as two annual fund raising events and a cultural festival in the fall.

Mr. Bireima pointed out that the property is currently screened from the residential neighborhoods
to the east by a masonry wall, and the open field on the south side of the buildings is enclosed by a
chain link fence and screened by a living screen. In addition, the existing 75 parking spaces meet
the needs of the center.

In closing his comments, Mr. Bireima highlighted the special conditions suggested by the staff
including the maintaining and supplementing the living screen along Somerset Place, maintaining
at least 75 parking spaces, tie the Special Permit to the Raindrop Foundation, and limit the
activities to weekly cultural, education and recreational activities.

Commissioner Frederick asked if one of the areas on Exhibit “B” was a pre-school playground or
was it a structure.

Mr. Bireima replied it was an open area with sidewalks that is used for general activities but it
could be used as a playground.

Commissioner Linn asked to confirm who the Special Permit would be tied to, what activities are
currently held at the Center and the number of parking spaces currently available.

Mr. Bireima replied the Special Permit would be issued to the Raindrop Foundation and if the
property was every sold, the new owner would have to come before the Commission to request
their own Special Permit.

Regarding the activities at the Center, Mr. Bireima replied the activities outlined in the special
conditions were the same as those that are currently taking place and the request for the Special
Permit would simply make the property legally conforming. He added that the Center currently
has 75 parking spaces on their property.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Commissioner Springs asked if it was staff’s opinion that any overnight activity would fall beyond
the limitations listed in the special conditions.

Mr. Bireima said any overnight stay would be beyond the scope of the activities listed in the
special conditions.

Mr. Chavez added that there are many institutional uses that have overnight retreats, although they
may not be permitted, they sometimes occur.

Chairman Hand wanted to know if the previous owner, YWCA, had occupied the property as an
office use, and pointed out that the Center’s property along Somerset Place might be in need of
some landscape maintenance.

Mr. Bireima said the O-M Office zoning was the base zoning for the property and the YWCA
requested a Special Permit for a community center because that particular use was not listed as a
use in the O-M Office District.

Commissioner Ferrell wanted to know if the applicant was given permission to have a Center, and
at a later time they wanted to add another building, they would have to come back before the
Commission for approval.

Mr. Bireima replied that was correct and the applicant could not expand the facility without asking
for another Special Permit.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Mr. Vepa Rejepov, Outreach Director for the Turkish Community Center, 1416 E. Collins
Boulevard, Richardson, Texas, said that after listening to the comments and concerns from the
adjoining neighborhood, and wanting to maintain good relations with the neighbors, they were
rescinding the original request and only asking for a Special Permit to operate as a community
center.

Vice Chair Bright asked for more information about the current activities at the Center. He also
wanted to know if anyone would be staying overnight at the facility.

Mr. Rejepov said there are weekend schools for the Turkish, Gambian and Bosnian communities,
along with SAT courses for the high school students. For cultural events the facility is used as a
meeting place for non-profit purposes during the week with luncheons and Saturday socials on the
weekends.

Regarding overnight stays, guest would stay at a local host’s home or at a local hotel. He added
that their initial submittal misstated the intended use and they were only asking for the chance to
allow students to stay during SAT courses or other educational activities.

Commissioner Linn asked if the limitation of only two annual fund raisers per year was sufficient.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 4



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Mr. Rejepov said that would be sufficient and pointed out that many of the members of the
community center provide funds as well as income derived from renting out the natatorium.

Chairman Hand asked if the applicant was not proposing to change the building why were they
requesting the Special Permit. He also wanted to know if overnight stays did take place, even
though the applicant stated that was no longer part of their request, those stays would fall under the
City’s Code Enforcement Department.

Mr. Rejepov replied that when they first purchased the property, they were not aware that a change
in the Special Permit was necessary, but through contact with the City they were made aware and
the current application was a result that a new special permit was needed.

Mr. Bireima confirmed that Mr. Hand was correct regarding overnight stays coming under the
purview of the Code Enforcement Department.

Mr. Mark Poer, 1412 Somerset Place, Richardson, Texas, stated his property was directly behind
the center and thanked the applicant and the Center for being sensitive to the concerns of the
neighborhood. He asked that if the Commission did approve the applicant’s request, a condition
should be added requiring the Center to come back before the Commission for approval on any
future buildings.

Mr. Howard Mabher, 1814 Clemson, Richardson, Texas said he was initially undecided and wanted
to hear the applicant’s statement before making a decision, but with the reported changes he did not
see any problems and emphasized that the proposed activities were exactly what they were doing at
the current time.

With no further comments in favor, Chairman Hand called for comments in opposition.

Ms. Lily Wang, 1410 Somerset Place, Richardson, Texas, stated she appreciated the fact that the
applicant had rescinded the request to build another building, but still had questions about the
number of children who would be tutored at the Center.

Ms. D’Andra Summers, 25 Merrie Circle, Richardson, Texas, said she was happy to have the
Center in the neighborhood and asked that the additional condition requested by Mr. Poer
regarding future buildings be added to the motion.

Mr. Robert Pinkston, 1908 Sara Lane, Richardson, Texas, asked for clarification on the following
questions:

e What is the difference between revoking Ordinance 2309-A and the proposed Special
Permit;

e What age groups would utilize the facility;

e What do the individuals from the many countries mentioned have in common; and

e Will the tutoring or weekend schools have any affiliation with Gulen Charter Schools?

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 5



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Chairman Hand explained the previous ordinance/special permit was issued to the YWCA,
whereas the new permit would be issued to the Center. He also stated the applicant would answer
any questions during the rebuttal phase of the public hearing.

Mr. Eric Torgerson, 1700 Richforest Drive, Richardson, Texas, said he was not as worried since
the application for an additional building had been withdrawn, but was concerned that the original
intent of the zoning, to provide services for the residents of the Yale Park neighborhood, would be
altered by the proposed use and influx of people from all over the metroplex.

Ms. Lydia Luckett, 1935 Forestwood Drive, Richardson, Texas, stated her concern dealt with the
fact that the wording of the posted information still contained mention of expanding and/or
construction a new building. She asked the Commission to deny the current application and to ask
the applicant to submit a new request specifically listing their intentions.

Mr. Bireima replied that there had been previous iterations, but the applicant had presented a new
“applicant’s statement” that does not include any mention of the previous building expansion or
overnight lodging. He added that if the Commission approved the request, the motion could
contain the four special conditions mentioned in the staff’s report which specifically outlines the
activities allowed in the Center.

Chairman Hand asked to confirm that everything under consideration at the present time
superseded all the previous requests.

Mr. Bireima confirmed that was correct.

Commissioner Roland read the posted request into the record and stated he would be voting on the
posted request as well as the previously mentioned special conditions.

Mr. Chavez pointed out that the confusion could be attributed to the notice that was mailed out to
the adjacent homeowners, which went out prior to the applicant submitting a new statement;
however, what was before the Commission was a request to revoke the existing Special Permit and
approve a new Special Permit for the listed uses and the Zoning Exhibit showing the facility as it is
now.

Ms. Luckett concluded her statement by asking that notification to the residents go beyond the 200-
foot requirement and be extended to all the residents of the Yale Park neighborhood.

Mr. Chavez replied that state law only required a 200-foot notification on zoning changes.

Ms. Summers asked if during their motion the Commission could specifically list all the conditions
they were or were not approving.

Ms. Paula Speer, 1605 Montclair Drive, Richardson, Texas, asked if the applicant was not going to
proceed with the building expansion why the application was from the architect as opposed to Mr.
Rejepov or the Raindrop Foundation.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 6



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Chairman Hand replied that he would let the applicant reply to all the questions and noted that
eighteen (18) speaker cards had been received in opposition. He asked Mr. Rejepov if he had any
rebuttal comments.

Mr. Rejepov stated that when the original application was submitted and there were plans to
expand the building, the architect was the applicant, but if the Commission wanted to begin the
process again he would submit a new application with his name on it.

Chairman Hand said he did not think that was necessary and added that it was customary for
property owners to hire civil engineers and architects to represent them at city meetings.

Mr. Rejepov stated he wanted to address the neighbor’s questions as they were presented:

Q: Why would students be coming from around the metroplex for tutoring and how many
would be attending?

A: Since the application for expansion had been withdrawn, tutoring sites in the cities of
Pantego, Carrollton and Denton would open to serve area students, and the Center in
Richardson would serve students from the cities of Dallas, Richardson and Plano.

Q: What is the age group of those utilizing the Center?
A: All age groups.

Q: Why a Center in the City of Richardson?
A: The property in Richardson was the size needed and the price was affordable.

Q: Is the Center affiliated with Gulen Charter Schools?

A: The Center is not affiliated with any charter or public schools, but the Raindrop Foundation
is a Gulen inspired organization. Also, the Center would be willing to assist Richardson or
Plano ISD if they wanted to use the facility.

Q: What are the common denominators for the people from different nations who use the
Center?

A: The facilities are used by people from the Turkish nations (Turkey, Kazahstan,
Turkmenistan, and former Soviet Union Turkish countries) who have similar cultures and
languages. Regarding the Bosnian and Gambian communities, they could not afford a facility
of their own so they are using the Center for educational purposes.

Q: Why is the Center drifting away from the original purpose?

A: Since the Raindrop Foundation is fairly new to the community, it is still in the process of
building relationships and would be open to ideas from the neighborhood. Contact has also
been made with the president of the local homeowners association in an attempt to better
communicate with the neighborhood.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 7



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
November 18,2014

Commissioners DePuy and Linn commended the applicant for listening to and offering to work
with the neighbors.

Ms. Laura Koster, 1821 Blake Drive, Richardson, Texas, asked if women would be allowed to use
the facility as well as men.

Mr. Rejeprov replied the natatorium is currently rented out to a swimming school and Garland ISD,
but they might consider opening the facility to memberships in the future.

With no further comments received in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Maxwell asked staff if the current proposal would affect the Center opening the
pool to the neighborhood.

Mr. Bireima replied that he thought the Center could open the pool to the community; however,
whether a fee could be charged would be something that would require further research.

Chairman Hand asked if the item was approved, would the Center be entitled to expand the
existing building.

Mr. Chavez replied no without coming back to the Commission to amend their Special Permit.

Commissioner Roland asked if the expense of mailing out notices of public hearings was borne by
the City and if the notices were mailed to every property owner outside the state mandated 200 feet
would the cost to the City increase.

Mr. Chavez replied the cost of mailing out the notices was covered by the City and pointed out that
as part of notification process, and in addition to the mailed notices, signs were posted on the
property, notices were listed in the newspaper as well as posted on the City’s web site and at City
Hall.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-32 with
the following special conditions:

1. The special permit for the community center shall be limited to the Raindrop
Foundation.

2. Activities shall be limited to the weekly cultural, educational and recreational
activities as well as two annual fundraising events and one cultural festival in the
fall.

3. The existing large shrubs located along Somerset Drive, which forms a living
screen, shall be maintained and supplemented with additional shrubs to fill any
existing gaps within the screen.

4. A minimum of 75 parking spaces shall be provided on the subject property in
accordance with Exhibit “B”.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 8



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Second by Commissioner Linn.

Chairman Hand thanked the applicant and neighbors for working together on the project
and stated the current motion was simply revoking a previous ordinance and granting a
new Special Permit to make the establishment legally conforming.

Motion approved 7-0.

9. Zoning File 14-38 — Brick Row Townhomes: Consider and take necessary action on a request to
amend the Spring Valley Station District PD Planned Development, Ordinance 4032, to increase
the development rights for townhomes and to allow the development of townhomes on
approximately 1.63 acres on the north side of Spring Valley Road between Greenville Avenue and
Floyd Branch Creek.

Mr. Shacklett advised the applicant was requesting to amend the Planned Development (PD) to
increase the overall development rights for single-family residences from 170 to 175; to allow
single-family uses to be located on southern portion of the property, which does not have rights;
and, to include a Concept Plan (Plan), listed as Exhibit “B”, to be attached to the ordinance, if
approved. The additional townhomes would be located along Greenville Avenue and Spring
Valley Road.

Mr. Shacklett pointed out the allotted number of multi-family units for all of Brick Row had
already been used, and because the property in question had rights for commercial/retail plus multi-
family but not single-family, the applicant was requesting additional townhomes to complete the
project west of the creek and to blend in with the existing townhome development to the north.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by highlighting some of the changes requested by staff
and the applicant from the original PD including changes to the open space, parking, sidewalks,
landscaping and amenity zones.

Vice Chair Bright asked if the new development plans would affect the creek to the west. He also
wanted to know if the change in use from retail to residential would have any bearing on the
relationship to the creek.

Mr. Shacklett replied that in the original concept plan there was an amenity zone and sidewalk that
separated the commercial/retail building from the creek and with the proposed townhomes the
buildings will be located in approximately the same area.

Regarding the change in use from retail to residential, Mr. Shacklett said he did not think there
would be an impact on the creek because with a commercial/retail use the side closest to the creek
would have had a sidewalk to allow people to walk behind the buildings to the parking area,
whereas, the townhomes will have small side yards closer to the creeks.

Commissioner Linn noted that for the proposed townhomes, the pavers and grass areas were the
exact opposite of the design in the older townhomes and suggested mimicking the same layout as
the previous design. He thought having grass in front of the townhomes would be a better design.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 9



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Mr. Shacklett replied that along Greenville Avenue there is no parking in front of the townhomes,
plus the amenity zone was directly “back of curb”, which afforded the need for a different
treatment. He also noted that if there was landscaping in front of the angled parking along Spring
Valley Road it would tend to be walked on by people coming out of their cars.

Mr. Chavez added that there will be green space between the amenity zone and the home itself.

Mr. Shacklett suggested that if the Commission was concerned about the location of the pavers
versus grass, a special condition could be added stating an amenity zone landscaped with sod
should be located between the tree wells.

Commissioner Maxwell said he agreed with Mr. Linn about the grass closer to the townhomes, but
also had a question as to why the applicant was not adding more parking spaces at the back of the
townhomes as requested by the staff, and was the request from staff based on current parking
problems.

Mr. Shacklett replied that all the townhomes to the north met the code for parking, but based on
comments from residents in the area, at times it was hard to find visitor parking in the area.

Commissioner Frederick said she had a concern that the homes along Spring Valley Road would be
at street level, which would detract from their appeal.

Mr. Shacklett said there is a requirement listed that the homes be at least 18 inches above the
sidewalks.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing

Mr. Scot Whitwer, CB Jeni Homes, 2805 N. Dallas Parkway, Plano, Texas, stated the townhome
community had been very successful and he thanked staff for all their help.

Mr. Whitwer acknowledged the design of the proposed townhomes was different from the existing
townhomes and promised to do whatever was necessary to make the projects look the same within
the limitations presented by the existing utility lines buried beneath the area.

Regarding any impact to the creek from the new townhomes, Mr. Whitwer said that with the
townhomes there would be less concrete and more open pervious space that would absorb any
rainfall as opposed to having it run off into the creek. He added that in his instructions to his
landscape architect he asked to make the area feel more residential with large landscape beds and
grass between the parking areas.

Mr. Whitwer pointed out that with the widen sidewalk there will be a flow from the west side of
the creek to the intersection on the east side of the property, as well as adding large canopy trees,
which would be consistent with the existing townhome development.

Commissioner Maxwell asked why the applicant did not add as many visitor parking spaces on the
north side of the new townhomes as requested by staff.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 10



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Mr. Whitwer replied there are currently 75 parking spaces available in the townhome development
and with the inclusion of the spaces in front of the proposed townhomes and the 5 new spaces, the
total would be slightly over 100 parking spaces for the townhome community. He added that in the
original proposed design there were only 3 parallel spaces on the north side of the new area, but
taking staff’s suggestion into consideration to make those spaces perpendicular.

Mr. Shacklett added staff was hoping for a total of 8 to 9 perpendicular spaces based on the length
of the parallel spaces, and understood there were certain constraints because of existing utilities,
but based on comments from the neighborhood additional parking spaces would be appreciated.

Mr. Chavez also noted that the applicant was attempting to make up for a deficiency in parking
from the previous project along Greenville Avenue that was not under their control.

Mr. Whitwer stated the previous project had been built by David Weekley before CB Jeni stepped
in to complete the project.

Vice Chair Bright asked about the view from the buildings on Karen Crossing. He also wanted to
know the price range for the proposed townhomes.

Mr. Whitwer said the price range would be in the $300,000 range and the homes would be the
same elevation as those previously approved by the City.

Commissioner Linn asked if the master suites would be on the first floor of the townhomes.

Mr. Whitwer replied the townhomes end units facing Spring Valley Road will have a downstairs
master bedroom.

Mr. Kevin Williams, 748 Matthew Place, Richardson, Texas, said was generally in favor or the
proposed townhomes, but did have some concerns and listed those as follows:

e Insufficient parking — possibly add more parking in the utility easement/common area.

e Increased alley traffic off Karen Crossing.

e Spring Valley Parking — competition for the parking spaces with mosque across the street as
well as local retail. Calculation should not include these parking spaces because the spaces
are not dedicated to the townhome community.

e Home size — more detail should be provided regarding patios, front entry, courtyard, etc.

Landscaping at Greenville Avenue and Spring Valley road — what landscaping will be

added to screen the alley.

Drainage in the alley behind the new townhomes.

Amenity Zone on Greenville Avenue — extend to the south.

Common Areas landscaping plan — provide better definition

Lighting — no lighting mentioned in current plan, would like to see lighting for alleys,

common areas and new entrance.

e Greenville building design — adherence to existing theme regarding grade change and
wrought iron gates.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 11



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Commissioner Linn stated there appears to be street lights around the entrances to the townhome
subdivision and asked for clarification as to additional lighting.

Mr. Williams replied there should be lighting for the rear entry homes and for the sidewalk going
through the common areas for safety and security.

With no further comments in favor, Chairman Hand noted comments in opposition received via
speaker cards:

e Need more parking
e Better defined landscape plan
e Area needed for community gathering (benches, tables, pavilion).

No other comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public
hearing.

Commissioner Frederick said she felt there was not a single small community (zero lot line, etc.) in
Richardson that did not have a parking issues and thought the problem needed to be addressed now
and going forward with any other developments.

Chairman Hand concurred, and acknowledged that the applicant was not the original developer, but
with the change in use a change in the required parking should have been generated. He also
suggested raising the entrances to the townhomes more than 18 inches and wanted to know if the
parallel parking extended to the utility easement.

Mr. Shacklett replied that each parallel parking space would have been 20 to 22 feet long with one
of the angled entrance/exit next to the utility easement. However, staff felt it would be better to
have perpendicular spaces, but the applicant did not want to come close to the utility area and have
to modify the pavement around the existing manholes.

Mr. Whitwer added there are also irrigation water meters in the area and if they were moved it
would require removing large sections of the roadway across Karen Crossing to be able to tie into
the main line. He added that they would be willing to work with staff to try and add more parking
spaces, but reminded the Commission of the limited space in the area because of the way the
existing community was developed.

Chairman Hand suggested that another 4 parking spaces could be added if the spaces were moved
as far to the east as possible.

Vice Chair Bright asked if there was anything that could be done regarding the parking to the south
and the use by those who do not live in the community.

Mr. Shacklett replied the parking was within the public right-of-way and was designed to meet the
needs of the original use, plus the code did allow parking spaces immediately adjacent to a
property to be counted towards parking requirements. As to whether or not the spaces could be
signed as “resident only” parking was not known.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 12



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

November 18,2014

Chairman Hand asked to confirm how many parking spaces staff had requested.

Mr. Shacklett replied the original submittal had 3 parallel spaces and staff requested perpendicular
spaces and to add as many as possible without moving the existing utilities.

Vice Chair Bright asked if the concern about lighting was something that needed to be addressed at
the current time or later on in the development process.

Mr. Shacklett said concerns about lighting and drainage should be addressed during the
development plan process. However, the screening of the alley could be added to the motion.

Commissioner DePuy asked to confirm 75 guest parking spaces existed for 175 townhome units.

Mr. Shacklett replied that each townhome had a two car garage, but lacked driveway space for
guest parking; however, each unit has one-half of a parking space on the street. The exception
would be for the townhomes along the creek, on deeper lots with driveway parking.

Vice Chair Bright stated he was in favor of adding four more parking spaces and asked the
applicant to address the question of lighting for the alley and common areas.

Mr. Whitwer replied the lighting would be worked out during the development plan process and
noted that while most cities have spacing between street lights of 300 feet, the street lights in the
community are spaced at 150 feet. As far as lighting in the common area, there are plans to have
lighted bollards along the sidewalk.

Commissioner Linn stated he was in favor of the request and felt the community was a better land
use, but asked to replace the pavers with sod and add lighting for the sidewalk in the common area.

Chairman Hand asked if the area shown on page 176 of the staff’s packet with pavers outside the
parking and tree wells was the area Mr. Linn was concerned about.

Mr. Shacklett replied the code would require a paver area with the tree wells, then sidewalks, then
the property lines. The original plan envisioned the area as commercial/retail, but with the
proposed single-family townhomes, the area would have an 8-foot concrete sidewalk (back of the
parking spaces), then a 6-foot sod area with tree wells spaced every 40 to 50 feet.

Commissioner Linn said he was in favor of replacing the pavers with sod in that area.

Chairman Hand pointed out that in the retail area to the west there were pavers outside the curb and
Mr. Linn said his suggestion would make the new townhomes more consistent with the homes
along Greenville Avenue.

Commissioner Roland reminded the Commission that trees could not be planted on top of utilities
and the fact there would be some type of yard between the amenity zone and the house. He also
thought some Commissioners might be under the assumption that no landscaping would be in front
of the townhomes and stated that assumption was not correct.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 13



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
November 18,2014

10.

Commissioner DePuy also noted that the community was designed with a more urban feel and did
not need a lot of grass.

Commissioner Springs said he agreed with Mr. Linn, but would frame it differently because he did
not see it as trading pavers for grass, but as trading pavers for three or four more parking spaces
because that was a bigger issue.

Commissioner Linn asked if the concerns over increased parking and removing the pavers and
converting it to sod could be added to the motion.

Mr. Shacklett advised the motion could state the item was approved as presented with the addition

of adding “x” number of additional parking spaces and the removal of pavers along Spring Valley
Road.

Mr. Chavez suggested adding verbiage to include on-site pedestrian lighting in the common area
and no fewer than three parking spaces at the north end of the common area.

Vice Chair Bright also thought adding landscaping along the two ends of the ally should be
included in the motion.

Motion: Commissioner Linn made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-38 as
presented with the following additional special conditions:

e Pedestrian lighting shall be placed along the walkway between Spring Valley Road
and Karen Crossing;

e Increase the number of parking spaces by no fewer than three spaces;

e Removing pavers within the amenity zone along Spring Valley Road in favor of
landscaping; and

e The addition of shrubs along the west dead end of the alley behind the Spring
Valley Road homes, the south dead end of the alley behind the Greenville Avenue
homes, and along the south side of the parking spaces along Karen Crossing.

Second by Vice Chair Bright.
Motion approved 7-0.

Zoning File 14-40 — Galatyn Properties: Consider and take necessary action on a request for
approval of a change in zoning on three (3) tracts of land: Tract 1 — approximately 34 acres located
at the northeast corner of N. Glenville Drive and Routh Creek Parkway; Tract 2 — approximately 9
acres located at the northeast corner of N. Central Expressway and Galatyn Parkway; and Tract 3 —
approximately 6 acres located at the southwest corner of Galatyn Parkway and N. Glenville Drive
from 1-M(1) Industrial (Tract 1, C-M Commercial (Tract 2), and I-M(1) Industrial (Tract 3) to PD
Planned Development.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 14



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
November 18,2014

Chairman Hand advised that a request had been received to continue Item 10 to the November 25,
2014 meeting; however, because the item had been advertised as a public hearing, and to

accommodate anyone who might want to speak and could not return on November 25th, Chairman
Hand opened the public hearing.

No comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand called for a motion.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to continue the public hearing for Zoning File 14-
40 to November 25, 2014; second by Commissioner Frederick. Motion approved 7-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular business
meeting at 9:36 p.m.

Barry Hand, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-11-18 Minutes.doc 15



